
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGJON4 

SAMNUNN 


ATLA~lA FEDBRAL CENTER 

61 FORSYTH STREET 


ATLANTA GEORGIA 303038%0 

MAY 18 2011 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETIJRN RECEIPT REQUESTEQ 

Mr. Michael J. Anderson 
Attorney at I.aw 
One Culver Center 
245 West Crogan Street 
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30045 

Re: Sandman America Inc. 

DocketNo.: FIFRA-04-201l-3014(bj 


Dear Mr. Anderson: 

Enclosed is a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in 
the above-referenced matter. The original CAFO has been filed wilh the Regional Hearing 
Clerk and served on the parties as directed in Section 22,6 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 
40 C.EIt. Part 22. 

As stated in Section V of the CAFO, 'he assessed penalty 0[$2,100 is due within 30 days 
from the effective date. Please ensure that the face ofyuur cashier's or certified check includes 
the name of the company and the docket number of this case. 

Penalty payment questions should be direcred to Mr. Bryson Lehman either by telephone 
at (513) 4&7-2123 or by written correspondence to his attention at the U,S, Environmental 
Protection Agency. Cincinnati Accounting Operations address identified in the CAFO. Should 
you have any questions about this matter or your oompliam:e status in the future. please call me 
at (404) 562-8979 or Mr. Phillip Beard at (404) 562-9012. 

InlerMtAddress (URI.). http:/twww.epa.gov 

RecycledlFleeyc:llble. Printed I'-1th V~9"lablll all Oaoo:! InkS 011 R!'l(;ycled P!,!OOf (MiMDIJlYl 30% Poslconsc.t'IWr) 


http:http:/twww.epa.gov


Also endosed is a copy of a document entitled "'Notice of Securities and Exchange 
Commi:;sion Registrants~ Duty to Disclose Environmental legal Proceedings," Thi~ document 
puts you on notice ofyour potential duty to disclose to the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) any environmental enforcement actions taken by EPA 

Sincerely, 

Jeaneanne M, Geule 
Chief 
Pesticides and Toxic 

Suh5tances Branch 

Enclosures 

cc: Tommy Gray, w/o enclosures 
Director, Pesticides Dhision 
Georgia Dept. ofAgriculture 



UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 4 


ATLANTA, GEORGIA 


In lb. Matter of: ) 

) . 
Sandman America Inc. ) Docket Xo, l'IFRk04,2011,30Hl{b) u 

) 
) 

,, . 

Respondent. ) 
) 

CONSENT AGREEME."jT A."1D FINAL ORDER 

L Nature of the Action 

1, 	 Thir.; is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant lo Sectiun 14(a} of the Federal hl$c.cticidc, 

Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended, 7 V,S,C, § 1361(a) (hereinafter "FIFRA"), 

and pursuant to the ConsQlidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative Assessment 

of Civil Penalties and the RevocationiTennination or Suspension of Permits 

(Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air. 

Pesticides, and Ttlx.ics Management Division. United States cllviromnental Protection 

Agency. Region 4 (EPA). Respondent is Sandman America inc, 

2. 	 Compluimmt and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 

40 C.P,R, § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described 

herein without a formal hearing. Therefore. wlthout the taking of any evidence or 

testimony. the making of a.ny argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter. 

and in aecardence with 40 C.F.R. § 22.I3(b), thi' Consent Agreement and Final Order 

(CAPO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

S:m<imlln Amcrka Int:. 
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n. Prelimjnarv Statements 

3. 	 The authorityw take action under Section 14(a) of FlfRA, 7li.S.c. § 1 361(a), is vested 

in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 

under fifRA to EPA Region 4 hy EPA Delegation 5-14 datnd May 11,1994, 

4. 	 Pursuant ro 40 CER. ~ 22.5'c)(4) the following individual is authorized. to receive 

service for EPA in this proceeding: 

Phillip Beard 
Pesticides Section 
lJ,S. EPA,. Region 4 
61 Fors)'th Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 
(404) 562-9012, 

5. 	 Tht': Respondent Sandman }unenca Inc. is located at 4R3 B1l1 Watkins Road, Hoschton, 

Georgia 30548. 

6. 	 Respondent lS a "person" as detlned by Section 2($0) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.c. § IJ6(s). 

and a~ such IS su~icct to FIFRA and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

In. Speeific Allegations 

7. 	 On or about April 23, 2009, an authorized representative of the EPA conducted on 

inspection at Bells Ferry Ace Hardware Store, 6437 Highway92, ACW011h, 

Georgia 30102. During the aforementioned inspection, Sandman Professional 

TurfTopdresscr Fertilizer Early Season Blend 22-0-22 was observed at the 

facility. This product is a mixture of a fertili7.er and RegaJstilf II an EPA 

registered pesticide assigned. EPA Registration Number 48234-15. 

?5. 	 On or about April 23. 2009, the inspector obtained evidence documenting the 

otTer for sale of the Sandman Professional TurfTopdrcsscr Fertilizer Eariy 

Season Blend 22~O-22 with Regalstar II OIl the company's web-sitt:. 
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9. 	 Sandman Professional TurfTopdresser Fertilizer Early Season Blend 22~O~22 with 

Regal,ta, II is a pesticide"" defined in Sectinn2(u) ofFIFRA, 7 U,S,c. § 136{u), which 

includes any substance Qr mixtUfC of substances intended for preventing~ destroying. 

repelling, or mitigating any pest. Sandman Professional Turf Topdre.!;:)cr Fertilizer Early 

Season Blend 22-0-22 with Rcgal::;tar H, is an unregistered pesticide. 

10, 	 A pc'S! is defined in Section 2{t) ofFIFRA, 7 U,S,(', § 136(1), "" any insect, 

rooent1 nematode, fungus, weed. or any other form of terrestrial or aquatic plant 

or allimallife or virus, bacteria, or other micro~()rganism (except viruses, bacteria, 

or other microorganisms on or in living man or other living animais) which the 

Administrator declares to be a j)C'S! under Scction25(c)( I) of FIFRA, 7 U,S,(" 

§ I 36w(c)(I), 

11. 	 Respondent "distributes or sells" pesticides. The tenn "to distribute or sell" as defined by 

Section 2(gg) ofFIFRA, 7 U,S,C, § I 36(gg), includes to distribute, sell, offer for sale. 

hold for distribution, hold I,,! sale, hold for shipment, .hip. deliver for shipment, or 

release fur ::;hipment 

12. 	 On April 23, 2009, Respondent offered for sale Sandman Professional TurfTopdresser 

Ft!rtilizer Early Scason BJend 22-0-22 with Regalstar H. an unregistered pt$ticide. 

13, 	 Under Sxtion 12(a)(I)(A) ofFlFRA, 7 U,S,C, § 136j(a)(I)(A), it is "nlaw!ul for any 

person in any State to diiitribute or sell any pesticide that is not registered under 

Section 3. 

14, 	 Respondent violated Section 12(a)(l)(A) ofFIFRA, i \':'s,C, § 136j(a)(I)(A), on at least 

one occasion and 1s therefore subject to the assessment ofcivil penalties under Section 14 

of FIFRA, 7 U,S,c' § 1361, 

Sandman Ameri"a Inc. 	 3 
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15. Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.s.c. § 1361(a), ill col1,unction with the Deht Collection 

Improvement Act of 1996, aUlhortzcs the assessment of a civil penalty. 

16. 	 Section l4(a)(4) of FlFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 1361(a)(4), require, I:iPA to consider the 

appropriateness. of the as:;essed penalty to the Sl.lC of business of the Respondent, 

the effect on Re:.pondent's- ability to continue in busincs:), and the gravity of the 

violation. 

17. 	 Aflercon,ideration of the factors set forth in Section \4(.)(4) of FlFRA, 7 U.S.C. 

§ 1361(a)(4), the EPA proposes to assess a IOtal civil penalty of TWO 

THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,700) against the Respondent 

for the above-described violation. Civil penalties under Section 14(a) ofFIFRA, 

7 U.S.c. § 1361(.), may be assessed by Administrative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreement 

18. 	 For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurudkiional allegations set forth 

above and ne-ither admits nQr denies the factual allegations .set forlh above, 

19. 	 Respondent waives its righl to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right 

to appeal the proposed Final Order accompanying the COll~elll Agreement. 

20. 	 Respondent conSCillS to the assessment of the penalty proposed by EPA and agrees to pay 

the civil penalty as set forth in this CAPO. 

21. 	 Respondent certifies that ali of the date of its execution of this CAFO. it is in compliance 

with all relevant requirements of FTFRA. 

22. 	 Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the ailegations of the violations contained 

herein. This CAFO shaH not otherwise affect any habihty of Respondent to the Ulliled 

States. Other than as cxpres~d herein, neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to 

Sandman America inc, 4 
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bring an enforcement action again::.t Respondent for violation of any federal or ~tale 

statute. regulation or permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial 

eooangemlcnt, or to pursue criminal enforcement. 

23. 	 Complaimml and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO. 

The parties agree thal the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requIrements of l'lFRA 

V. Final Order 

24. 	 Respondent is "",."ed a civil pe!llllly of TWO THOUSAND SEVEN 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,700) which shall be paid within 30 days from the 

effective date of this CAFO. 

25. 	 Respondent shall remit the penalty payment by elther a cashier's or certified check made 

payable to the "Treasurer, United States of America," and shall send the check via U ,$, 

mail to the following address: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Fines and Penalties 

Cincinnati Finance Center 

P.O. Box 979077 

SL Louis,!vIO 63197-9000, 


The check shall reference 01} its face the name of the 
Respoodenland Ihe Docket Number assiglletl 10 tbis eAFo. 

26. 	 At the tune of paymcrn. Respondent shall send a separate copy of the chock and a 

written statement fhat the payment is being made in accordan,-,'C with this CAFO, to the 

following persons at the fonowing addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA ... Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. Georgi. 30303-8960; 

Sandman Amcrka Tnc. 5 
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Phillip Beard 
Pesticides Section 
lI.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960; 

and 

Saundi Wilson 
Office ofEnvironmcntal AccQuntabllity 
C.S. EPA ~ Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8%0. 

27, For the purposes of state and federal income taxation. Respondent shall not be entitled, 

and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 

pursuant to this CAFo. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 

constitute a violation of this CAFo. 

2R. Punmant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts 

owed to the Cnited States and a charge to cover the cost ofprocessing and handling a 

delinquent claim, Interest wiU therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date 

of entry oftms CAPO. if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will also 

be assessed to coyer the administrative costs. both direct and indirect. ofoverdue debts. 

(n addition, it late pa)TI1ent penalty charge shall be applied on any principal amount not 

paid Within 90 days of the due date. 

29. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their uwn COl)ts and attorney fees in this matter . 

.10. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its succt.'Ssors and assigns. 

31 , Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or she is 

fully authorized by the party represented to tlnter into this CAPO and legally binds that 

party to this CAFO. 

Sandman America Inc. 6 
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___ 

VL Effective Date 

32. 	 The effective date of thi, CAPO shall be tne date on which the CAFO is filed with 

the Regional Hc"ring Clerk. 

AGRKIill AND CONSENTED TO: 


Respondent: Sandman America Ine. 

DocketN".: FIFRA-M·2011·3014(b) 


By: ~..If-.~. (Sign.m!c) Date: _'1"-/-:.z_()-'.Izol_'__ 


Title: ey= e..s : 1. ,A (Typed or Printed) 

Complainant: U. ~nVironmental Protection Agency 

By:I'aNJ-f6:l~ate: .5/5/11
iff> Beverly H, Banister, Director I 
V Air, Pesticides and Toxics 

M\Ulag(~mcnt Division 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED thb 

J"",,, 6. .LkJ,
Susan B. Schuh • 
Regional Judicial Officer 

Samlmun Aml-'Tica IrK.:, 7 
Dm:kct ;.,tn. F1FRA~04~2() 11~:10J4(b) 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the date set out below, 1 filed the original and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent AgrCClucnt and Final Order and served a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agr("~'1TIent and Final Order, In the Matter of Sandman America fne., Docket 

Number: FIFRA-04-2011-3014(b), to the addressees listed below, 

Mr. :v1ichael J. Anderson (via Certitied !vlaiL Return Receipt Requested) 
Attorney at Law 
One Culver Center 
245 West Crogan Street 
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30045 

Phillip Beard (via EPA's internal mail) 
Pt::-;tiddes Section 
US, EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan (via EPA'~ intt;}mal maiJ) 
A_ssociate Regional Counsel 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
u.s, EPA Region 4 
61 FOfllyth Street, g,W, 
Allan"" Georgta 30303 

Datc:5.-J2:3 -)L ~,~ C_:::::>UCX.J(.¥ 
Patricia A. Bullock, Regionaillearing 
LJ .S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
n1 Forsyth St, SW 
Atlanta, Goorgia 30303 
(404) 562-9511 



__________________________ _ 

, 

EPA ACCOIlNTS RECEIVABLE CONTIIOL N1JMBER F9I!M 

dtlthL 
(Dolo) 

Region 4, ORe ~ ORA 	 (404l562 91)04 
1· ...·---::..::.:..:..:.-....:......:......:......:..--;;(om..;;;;::I.--::t--51--,-------rr~N':"") 

O Noa-SF JIJdIdalOrderK'OII:lIaIIlJ)rec:rea 	 ~OnIerIC""'AcreaElll 
USAO COLLICTS nro COLI.EC1"S PAYMENT 

SF ___ - ...BIlIIar· Coot """""'I!!!""O S...... WII 	 - ­o DOS COLLllCtS o 
000--	 O·O.a__.c............... _ 


o TbllflaaDflllt-ttoa 

Tho C___• __..Jful;.::r.c:"'",f'Ic:....::."'.;.i.,:;dO=!1-"'.3:;,0I;;.;"l,;("'b;.,:)____________ 

Tho~S~~~~ 
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plITJUIll'I1DN: 

A. 	.JUDICIAL oltpUS: Copia tllIIIa r..db......... taff IIIIht mat ptIIt -_ fINAL J1JQICIAL QRDq 
sIIoIIW lie..... to: 

1. 	 L "'........"-IUD!
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